
Note: Draft minutes are subject to corrections, additions, and deletions.

Town of Hampton

100 Winnacunnet Road Hampton, New Hampshire 03842     Tel. 603-926-6766    Fax 603-926-6853

May 1, 2023

Posted: Library, Town Offices, Town website

7:00 p.m. Board of Selectmen



Note: Draft minutes are subject to corrections, additions, and deletions.

05-01-2023 Draft BoS Minutes Page 2 of 6

IV. Approval of Minutes

1. March 20, 2023 Tabled
2. April 10, 2023 Tabled

V. Consent Agenda

1. 2023 Veteran



Note: Draft minutes are subject to corrections, additions, and deletions.

05-01-2023 Draft BoS Minutes Page 3 of 6

need.  She discussed an issue at Stickney Terrace that needs the light company to come out.  She
discussed the additional funds needed, $4000.00. 

Sel. Waddell MOTIONED to APPROVE to Authorize the Town Manger to execute the Purchase
Order for Electric Light up to $4000 from the 2023 approved warrant article 28 for the additional
signal work for the Town Center Traffic Lights, SECONDED by Sel. Hansen.  VOTE:  4-0-0

Dir. Hale noted they will watch up to Memorial Day to see how it is going.  She discussed right
turn on red and reiterated it is for safety.

TM Sullivan noted the emergency vehicle override.

Sel. Hansen discussed children on bikes or walking, and people with disabilities getting across
the street.  

b   Chapter 769 Streets, Sidewalks and Public Places Revisions

Dir. Hale discussed chapter 769 in the code of ordinances, noting it very large with 74 sections.
She noted confusion and redundancy, noting it needs restructuring and reorganization.  She
discussed needing clarity on permits and approvals.  She asked the board for consent to go
through the chapter and not change the intent but clarify and organize it.  She referenced the
excavation permit process as an example.  She also discussed the bond process as another
example and explained how it would work.

Chairman Sawyer asked if when the changes come back, the selectmen can vote to take action.
TM Sullivan noted the areas in the chapter are selectmen authority. 

Sel. Hansen noted she likes efficiency, and it is a great idea.  Sel. Waddell agreed as did Sel.
Rage. Chairman Sawyer noted the director has the consensus to work on the chapter. 

TM Sullivan asked for a brief summary on the current major projects in process.

Dir. Hale discussed the High Street project, and the bids will be opened on May 23rd, and noted
many contractors were contacted.  She discussed Kings Highway and noted they are meeting
with DES on Weds. to review the design and noted the timeframe of the project.  She discussed
the bicentennial wall and that they met with those designers last week.  She noted the plans from
2017 were looked at with recommendations given, one being to be consistent with the state wall.
She noted she will be seeking public input on the design.  She discussed current issues with
recycling, trucks needing repairs and staffing issues.  She gave an update on building
improvements.  She noted making some cuts due to funding and that demo started today.  She
respectfully asked the board if she could get the $24,000.00 to cover the cuts made so they could
do the project completely.  She noted not having the staff to do some items on their own. 

Chairman Sawyer noted the staffing levels are still down and Dir. Hale noted they are down 9.

TM Sullivan discussed the recommendation for a motion for the funding.

Sel. Hansen MOTIONED to APPROVE to Additional Money from ARPA SLRF funds at
$24,830.00 for Building Improvements to be added to the previously approved $50,000.00,
SECONDED by Sel. Waddell.  Vote: 4-0-0

Sel. Rage asked about things not getting completed last year and referenced crosswalks.  Dir.
Hale noted that bid has been awarded and we are just waiting for good weather.  She discussed
the issues and noted a one-year contract with the company.  



Note: Draft minutes are subject to corrections, additions, and deletions.

05-01-2023 Draft BoS Minutes Page 4 of 6

Sel. Hansen discussed the paving contracts and asked about the consulting company.  Dir. Hale
discussed that bid process and what the contracts will include.  She discussed the study and noted
it is an RFQ process and noted it will help with planning and budgeting for next year.

Sel. Waddell asked about High Street, and will it be done in 23 or 24.  Dir. Hale discussed as
soon as the bid is awarded, they can start so it will be this year.

3. Kristi Pulliam, Finance Director
a Monthly Financials

Dir. Pulliam noted this is for March and noted they are posted on the website and the target is
25%.  She discussed revenues, March Revenue Details are YTD $1,649,329, March amount was
$839,496.  She noted that the town clerk is the biggest piece of the pie and noted land rent.  The
2023 revenue is $27,839 higher than 2022.  The revenue lines that are lower than 2022 are
mostly related to timing of receiving income.

She discussed expenses, on the expense side we have spent $7,335,022 and have open purchase
orders totaling $1,177,871.  These figures include amounts spent related to warrant articles.  We
are under budget by $602,076 or 2.02%.  She noted the percentages of individual departments.
She mentioned wages and benefits, the biggest expenses.  She gave the comparisons of utilities
and fuel costs.  She noted how interesting the chart is and she is researching further.

She gave the other fund totals at: Recreation Fund $161,601, Cable Fund $824,300.  She
explained the high balance and projects being done.  Detail Fund $223,937, EMS Fund
$976,987, Recycling Fund $128,580, Wastewater Development Charge $358,686.  Grant income
$108,044.  Expenses $36,894.

Sel. Waddell commented that he agreed how interesting the utilities and fuel chart is.  There was
general discussion. 

Sel. Hansen asked about where the money comes from for the Wastewater Dev. Charge.  Dir.
Pulliam explained it is people adding bathrooms etc. and that has a fee associated with it.

Sel. Waddell referenced all the departments being under budget and it being a good thing, with
regard to the default budget.  TM Sullivan noted we are managing constantly. 

VII. Town Manager



Note: Draft minutes are subject to corrections, additions, and deletions.

05-01-2023 Draft BoS Minutes Page 5 of 6

Sel. Rage agreed people should be here, and maybe if there is a special circumstance it could be
looked at. 

Chairman Waddell noted he is open to discussion.

Sel. Hansen noted it may be opening a can of worms, so let



Note: Draft minutes are subject to corrections, additions, and deletions.

05-01-2023 Draft BoS Minutes Page 6 of 6

TM Sullivan discussed a grant applied for by the Conservation Commission, from the National
Resources Inventory, to hire a consultant to do an inventory of our public lands. It is an award of
$24,581.60.  He noted the motion for the board.

Chairman Sawyer clarified we have been awarded this grant and the town manager stated yes.

Sel. Waddell clarified they are hiring a consultant and the town manager noted F B
Environmental. 

Sel. Hansen clarified they are inventorying our public land and the town manager explained the
national program to catalog non-federal conservation land. 

Sel. Hansen MOTIONED to APPROVE the Town Manager to sign grant paperwork and enter
into a contract as recommended by the Conservation Commission, SECONDED by Sel.
Waddell.  Vote:  4-0-0

Sel. Rage discussed that the HBVD had a public hearing about the 1A project.  He discussed the
public did not want parking on the sand side of Ocean Blvd. and did not want the lanes to go
down.  He noted that the state does not seem to be listening and so he and other representatives
are going to Concord to meet with DOT.  He noted he would like to represent Hampton, as well
as the HBVD.  

Chairman Sawyer noted he did not need permission; he is a board member and therefore can
represent the town.

TM Sullivan noted he has written a letter also.  There was general discussion regarding the plan.

Chairman Sawyer discussed the danger of the one lane for traffic.

Sel. Waddell noted we should oppose strongly.

Sel. Rage noted he thought the state doesn




